City of Springfield
Regular Meeting

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF
THE SPRINGFIELD CITY COUNCIL HELD
MONDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2007

. The City of Springfield Council met in regular session in the Council Meeting Room, 225 Fifth
Street, Springfield, Oregon, on Monday, December 3, 2007 at 7:11 p.m., with Mayor Lelken
presiding.

ATTENDANCE

Present were Mayor Leiken and Councilors Lundberg, Wrylie, Ballew, Ralston, Woodrow and
Pishioneri. Also present were City Manager Gino Grimaldi, Assistant City Manager Jeff Towery,
City Attorney Joe Leahy, City Attorney Matt Cox, City Recorder Amy Sowa and members of the
staff,

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Mayor Leiken.

SPRINGFIELD UPBEAT

1. “Be a Santa to a Senior” Proclamation.

Mayor Leiken read the first paragraph of the “Be a Santa to a Senior” proclamation. He explained
the purpose of this proclamation and the focus of the Home Instead Senior Care organization. He
proclaimed the month of December 2007 as “Be a Santa to a Senior” month.

CONSENT CALENDAR

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR LUNDBERG WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR
WOODROW TO APPROVE THE CONSENT CALENDAR. THE MOTION PASSED
WITH A VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST.

1. Claims

2. Minutes

November 13,2007 — Work Session
November 19, 2007 — Regular Meeting

November 26, 2007 — Work Session
November 26, 2007 — Special Regular Meeting

Ao o

3. Resolutions

a. RESOLUTION NO. 07-52 — A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT PROJECT P20487 FROM
WILLIAM J. BOFFING JR. CONSTRUCTION, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF
$10,894.00 AND L.R. BRABHAM, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $11.,356.00. THE
TOTAL COST OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING LABOR, TOTALED $29.258.46.




City of Springfield

Council Regular Meeting Minutes
December 3, 2007

Page 2

b. RESOLUTION NO. 07-53 — A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT PERMIT PROJECT
P30461, THURSTON PLACE SUBDIVISION.

c. RESOLUTION NO. 07-54 — A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT PERMIT PROJECT
P30466; COTTAGE HOUSE GARDEN.

d. RESOLUTION NO. 07-55 — A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AMENDED INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
AGREEMENT WITH WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES IN THE AMOUNT OF
$125.900.00 FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE DESIGN AND
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT OF THE HARLOW ROAD LIFT STATION
P20381. : :

4. Ordinances

5. Other Routine Matters

a. Approval of Liquor License Endorsement for Chuck E. Cheese’s, located at 3000
Gateway Street, Springfield, Oregon.

b. Approval of the Purchase of Police Vehicles for Fiscal Year 2008 for a Total of not more
than $189,500.

ITEMS REMOVED

PUBLIC HEARINGS - Please limit comments to 3 minutes. Request to speak cards are available
at both entrances. Please present cards to City Recorder. Speakers may
not yield their time to others.

1. Amendment to the Springfield Development Code Chapters 3, 4 and 5 Correcting Errors,
Grammar, and Sequencing of Information in Proper Order.

ORDINANCE NO. 6211 — AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD
DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS, SECTION 3.2-210; 3.2- -
215; 3.2-230; AND 3.3-910; CHAPTER 4 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, SECTION 4.2-
140; 4.6-135; 4.6-145; 4.6-155; 4.7-195; AND TABLE 4.2-35 AND CHAPTER 5 THE
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS AND APPLICATIONS, SECTION 5.12-120; AND
5.17-120; ADOPTING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY (Jo. No. LRP2007-00027)

Planning Manager Greg Mott presented the staff report on this item. The recent Code
reformatting project resulted in some errors of omission, grammar and proper sequencing of
information. These proposed amendments will correct these known “scrivener’s errors.”

The Code reformatting project involved the comprehensive rearrangement of all the Development
Code text from its former 44 Articles into 6 Chapters. The principle objectives were to place all
of these regulations and standards in more logical groupings; eliminate repetitive occurrences of
the same information; and make the document easier for everyone to use. The project was a



City of Springfield

Council Regular Meeting Minutes
December 3, 2007

Page 3

qualified success, that qualification being the sheer number of standards and regulations
undergoing re-numbering inevitably created opportunities for a variety of niggling errors that
have been discovered as time has passed and usage has increased. There could be, and probably -
are, other errors similar to those included in this Ordinance, but staff is requesting that the action
requested today proceed and that the Council exercise its usual forbearance when the next similar
ordinance is presented for consideration.

The emergency clause was requested to allow prbper implementation of the Code to commence
with Council action. He noted that the proposed changes in legislative format were on the last
seven pages of Attachment 2 included in the agenda packet.

Mayor Leiken asked for the definition of Youth Hostel.
Mr. Mott explained. He said there had only been one in operation since he had been with the City.

Councilor Pishioneri said he had read through all of the changes. He asked if there was a way to
show the changes made in a separate document rather than the ordinance as a whole.

Mr. Mott said Attachment 2 described the changes being made in the Code. He gave an example.
A sentence in the AIS directing Council to the changes was noted in Attachment 2.

Mayor Leiken asked if further changes would be coming to the SDC regarding HB 3337.

Mr. Mott said he didn’t foresee anything coming that would amend the SDC, but he did not know
for sure. As the City did the work necessary to implement HB3337, there could be changes to
address efficiency measures or to make better use of certain sites (residential, industrial or
commercial). Any changes would be a result of the work that progressed on HB3337. For the
most part, the SDC was not a policy document. The policy was in the plan and the SDC was used
to implement those policies. He explained further.

Mayor Leiken said the City would need to address Metro Plan text with our partnering
_ jurisdictions. That could cause other changes to be made to the SDC. He appreciated that our staff
continued to work on this and adjusted to the changes.

Councilor Ralston asked about a change regarding RV’s from a ‘permanent new’ to ‘residential
use’. He asked if that meant people could live in their RV’s parked in their driveway.

Mr. Mott said they could not. He explained that the Code used to be definitive about permitted
uses of RV’s within the City. They were prohibited for any use other than in a licensed mobile
home park or for a caregiver or person being cared for to reside. The exception regarding the
caregiving was only on a temporary basis after going through a process. That was what the update
referred to.

Mayor Leiken opened the public hearing.

No one appeared to speak.

Mayor Leiken closed the public hearing.



City of Springfield

Council Regular Meeting Minutes
- December 3, 2007

Page 4

IT WAS MOVED BY COUNCILOR LUNDBERG WITH A SECOND BY COUNCILOR
WOODROW TO ADOPT ORDINANCE NO. 6211. THE MOTION PASSED WITH A
VOTE OF 6 FOR AND 0 AGAINST.

2. Amendment to the Springfield Development Code Chapters 3, 5 and 6 Establishing New
Annexation Procedures.

ORDINANCE NO. 6212 — AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SPRINGFIELD
DEVELOPMENT CODE TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE, SECTION 5.7-100 AND 5.23-
100; CHAPTER 3 LAND USE DISTRICTS, SECTION 3.3-825; CHAPTER 5 THE
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCESS AND APPLICATIONS, SECTION 5.1-140;
TABLE 5.4-1; SECTIONS 5.7-105 THROUGH 5.7-165; SECTION 5.12-120; SECTION
5.12-130; ADDING SECTION 5.23-100 THROUGH 5.23-125; AND CHAPTER 6
DEFINITIONS, DELETING THE TERM ANNEXATION AGREEMENT; ADOPTING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY (Jo. No. LRP2007-

00026).

RESOLUTION NO. 07-56 — A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF SPRINGFIELD AMENDING THE ADOPTED MASTER SCHEDULE OF

- MISCELLANEOUS FEES AND CHARGES, RATES, PERMITS, AND LICENSES TO
PROVIDE FOR THE ADDITION OF “ANNEXATION FEES (MINOR BOUNDARY
CHANGES)” AND “EXTRATERRITORIAL WASTEWATER OR WATER LINE
EXTENSIONS.”

Planning Manager Greg Mott presented the staff report on this item. The 2007 Oregon
Legislature abolished the Lane County Boundary Commission effective January 1, 2008.
Pursuant to ORS 222 City Boundary Changes the City Council assumes sole responsibility for all
annexations, including extraterritorial extension of services and territory withdrawals, effective
January 1, 2008.

Based on new laws, the City Council is now the approval authority for annexations. All statutory
provisions necessary for this transition to occur are included in this proposal. On November 20,
2007, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on these amendments; one person
spoke in support. The Planning Commission forwarded a recommendation of approval
(Attachment B).

The fees in Attachment C, Exhibit B, page 2 show new charges based on City processing cost .
recovery of 80 percent. No exceptions or waivers are included in this proposal. If Council
prefers to include a fee waiver or reduction for health hazard annexations or other special
circumstances, or special fee for expedited annexation proposals, staff can return in January with
some amendment options for Council consideration.

Mr. Mott said because of the timing of implementation of the new law, it was necessary to
implement this now for any annexations that came to staff before the end of the year. He
described the amendments recommended by staff. Starting January 1, 2008, the City would be
responsible for processing the applications, confirming tax lots, and notifying affected agencies of
annexations. He described the proposed process for future annexation requests, including public
hearings for all proposed annexations. The criteria was derived from policy that was within the
Metro Plan.



City of Springfield

Council Regular Meeting Minutes
December 3, 2007

Page 5

Mr. Mott said the difference in the law was that in the past, non-contiguous annexations were
allowed. ORS 222 did not allow non-contiguous annexations. He said definitions regarding
contiguous had been included in the amendments in the SDC. He explained the definition.
Council may be faced with options such as annexation of right-of-way, and that was included in
the amendment. If a proposal was for service extension, by this statute the City could authorize
-service extensions - not technically considered an annexation anymore under this statute. The
Code language remained authorizing that decision to be up to the City Council.

Mr. Mott said it was staff’s objective to process these annexation requests in a timely fashion,
with a benchmark of 65-70 days from the date the application was received to the public hearing.
Current processes were not normally done any faster than this.

Mr. Mott referred to Attachment B included in the agenda packet. This attachment related to
extra-territorial extensions. It was not required by law to include that, but if they did include it,
they would have control over it. It was up to Council to determine whether or not it could be a
consideration before Council. He noted that exceptions for fee waivers were not included in these
amendments. If Council would like to think about that, staff could bring it back to them for
consideration. He referred to the resolution which included the new fees. He explained the
increase in these fees since the City would be performing the process. The fees were at about 80
percent cost recovery. Those fees could be adjusted at a future date.

Mayor Leiken opened the public hearing.

1. Jemry Ritter, 1865 Yolanda Avenue, Springfield, OR. Mr. Ritter acknowledged Mr. Mott, Mr.
Grimaldi and other staff for their work on this and their communication with him. The work
was not trivial. It was important to understand why we had this extra work and why the Lane
County Boundary Commission (LCBC) went away. He said nearly the entire Lane delegation
sponsored SB417, because of complaints going back over a decade about this commission
being completely unaccountable to the public and unresponsive to public input. This was a
part of a series of changes in State annexation laws that had been affected over the last two
sessions. The reason for the changes was because there were a few cities (not Springfield),
that had been abusing annexation authority and had shut the public out of the decisions. He
referred to section *“5.7.125(B)(2) and (B) (3)” which states that “publicly owned right of way
could be added to annexation initiated by these two methods (in ORS 222.173) without
consent”. While that was true, abuse of this was a problem for some other cities. Those cities
were doing it primarily to create islands after ORS 195 went away in 2005. He urged the
Council, that when they were considering public right of way annexations, they have a very
legitimate reason for doing so. He expressed his appreciation to Springfield for not following
up on the aggressive annexation policies and proposals of the Metro Plan.

Mayor Leiken closed the public hearing.

Councilor Ralston said Council could decide if they wanted to have extra-temtonal extensions.
He asked if they needed to make that decision tonight.

Mr. Mott said Council could amend this in the future as they chose after it’s adopted. He wanted
them to know that they were not regulated by law to regulate extra-territorial extensions, whereas



City of Springfield

Council Regular Meeting Minutes
December 3, 2007

Page 6

in the past the LCBC had to regulate them. Staff included it in the amendment because they felt it
left the City in a better position.

Mr. Leahy said the proposed amendments included the staff’s best recommendation as a starting
point. There could be some fine tuning as they went along. Mr. Mott and Mr. Leahy would be
meeting with the County and the City of Eugene to discuss extra-territorial extensions and
provide Council with more information. They had not yet had a chance to do that in the tight
timeline available.

Councilor Ralston asked if the statewide planning goals still applied. Yes. He confirmed that
Council could add this later if they left it out now. Yes.

Councilor Ballew said she was concerned about extensions, particularly for sanitary sewer. She
understood the IGA with MWMC stated that services would only be provided to residents of the
City. She felt leaving this in was contrary to that, and asked if it was too late to remove it.

Mr. Leahy said as those requests came to Council, they could articulate their concerns at that
time. This allowed the Council with more flexibility and discretion.

Councilor Ballew said she did not want people asking for this service if they weren’t becoming
part of the City. She was concerned about making decisions regarding supplying water because
she felt that was Springfield Utility Board’s (SUB’s) issue.

Mr. Mott said the LCBC had been in control of that because most circumstances were extending
to an existing water district. There were laws that regulated that type of activity and moving from
one water district to SUB. The agreement with SUB was that they were the water provider for the
properties in the City out to the urban growth boundary (UGB). Normally, the property would
need to annex first before getting water and sewer. He discussed the issue with the homes on
South 79" Street. Currently, those residents couldn’t be annexed but Council could choose to
extend services.

Cduncilor Ballew referred to Grandview Estates. She said the property was non-contiguous, but
was contiguous to an island. She asked how that worked and if it was legitimate to expand the
island. :

Mr. Mott said the definition of contiguous was any property that was currently in the City. Any
property that abutted that City property would be continued contiguous. That was an
interpretation that could be used.

Mr. Leahy said it would increase the size of the island annexation. He explained the new statute
and how. it related to restrictions on public streets.

Councilor Ballew asked about 80 percent cost recovery. She thought Council asked staff to get
100 percent.

Mr. Mott said he received information to get 80 percent cost recovery. He recalled that Council
had asked staff to gradually build up from 50 percent recovery about 10 years ago. He discussed
cost recovery. ‘



City of Springfield

Council Regular Meeting Minutes
December 3, 2007

Page 7

Councilor Ballew asked for more information regarding cost recovery.

Mr. Grimaldi said staff would be coming back to Council after the break to discuss fees and
charges and that information would be discussed.

Councilor Woodrow asked about if there was an expedited fee at the Boundary Commission. No.

Mr. Mott said staff was not recommending an e.xpedited process for annexations. There was an
expedited process for certain land use applications that did cost more.

Mr. Leahy said the expedited fee was for a system that was less staff intensive than the norm.

Councilor Pishioneri discussed the residents on South 79" Street. He asked if this wbﬁld assist or
hinder those folks from reaching that goal.

Mr. Mott said it was in the Council’s purview to extend the sewer without annexing. In the past,
in order for the City to extend water service, both the City and LCBC had to approve it. This
change transferred the sole responsibility and decision making for this to the Council.

Mr. Leahy said if Council decided to include the extra-territorial provision in the SDC, staff
would be back with more information. He further discussed the issues surrounding South 79™
Street. Money issues had been a problem, as well as getting enough residents to back it.

Councilor Pishioneri noted a typo on Attachment C, Exhibit A, page 1 of 12.

Councilor Lundberg said this change to the annexation process was a huge undertaking and
responsibility. It was a good thing, but carried a lot of weight. She appreciated having a say over
the water services. All utilities were connected and it was good to have it all together. She
referred to the issues at Santa Clara/River Road. She wanted to take a long-range look at this
issue during Goal Setting, including annexation of right of way.

Mr. Mott said annexation was a growth management tool that was connected to the Metro Plan.
Staff was not able to suggest changes to the Metro Plan text at this time. The Metro Plan was
‘written with the LCBC as an entity. Some of those policies needed to be changed, but must be
done in conjunction with Lane County and Eugene. The recommended amendments were an
effort to have this in place when annexation requests came to Council.

Mayor Leiken said LCBC gave the City Council some cover in the past. It was now the
responsibility of the City Council alone. The City was likely to be looking at expanding the UGB
and when they did, there could be some issues with some of the residents and regarding
infrastructure. Council would need to be very conscious about ex parte contact. It was going to be
important for staff to communicate to the City Manager and the City Manager to the Council on
how things were going. As they went through these issues, the City needed to be flexible as they
were in other areas. This was new and he hoped staff would determine as they went through this
what worked and what didn’t. Annexation agreements could be very complex.

Mr. Mott said the element that was a constant was that the annexation agreement needed to be
completed before coming to Council as part of the hearing.



City of Springfield

Council Regular Meeting Minutes
December 3, 2007

" Page 8

Mayor Leiken said the annexation agreements were excellent tools to help fund the infrastructure.
Staff had put together the best annexation agreements he had ever seen.

Councilor Ballew asked if this could be amended to add the extra territorial extensions later.
Mr. Leahy said they could add it in later.

Councilor Ballew said she would like to leave it out now because she had a lot of questions. It
would be her preference to exclude the extra-territorial extension.

Mr. Leahy said if it was left out, the City would be silent on that issue and would have nothing to
respond to if asked by a citizen. Staff would be back with some recommendation to address it
later.

Councilor Ballew said she would like to leave out the extra-territorial item because one of the
services you got when annexing to the City was water and sewer.

Mayor Leiken asked how staff felt about leaving it out.

Mr. Mott confirmed what Mr. Leahy had said about the City being silent on this issue if it’s not
included. He said he was not sure if there was language in the Metro Plan that said SUB acted on
the City’s behalf.

Councilor Ballew said there were too rhany questions to add this provision at this time.

Mr. Mott said they could delete the sections in the ordinance pertaining to extra-territorial
extensions without interfering with the emergency clause. He said this would include deleting
Section 20, Chapter 5, Sections 5.23-100 through 5.23-125 and also the definition. The motion
from the Council could be to adopt the ordinance with that section and any other reference to
extra-territorial extensions in the ordinance deleted.

Councilor Woodrow asked if staff could bring back answers in January to the questions brought
up by Council on this topic.

Mr. Leahy said they could try. If Council adopted the ordinance with this section deleted,
‘property owners would have to annex to receive water and sewer since the City would be silent
on the extra-territorial extension.

Mr. Mott pointed out that this didn’t relate to extra-territorial extensions when a health hazard
existed. That was State law.

Councilor Ralston said he would prefer to leave this in because it would leave more flexibility. -
Council could choose not to apply it at a later date.

Councilor Lundberg said this was one policy direction with no answers. She agreed with
Councilor Woodrow and would like to get answers to their questions in January. She said it was a
huge change and responsibility for the Council. It was a policy choice not to extend services
unless people wanted to annex. Council could discuss this and make a change later. She didn’t
foresee that waiting would hold anyone up on their annexation.



